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To the Participants and Management of “Semizbay-U” LLP

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of
“Semizbay-U” LLP (the — “Company”) as at 31 December 2017, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).

What we have audited

The Company’s financial statements comprise:

o the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;

e the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

¢ the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion,

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

TOO «IIpaiicyomepxaycKynepe»
IIp. Anv ®apabu 34, 30anue A, 4 samadk, 050059 Aamamut, Kasaxeman
T: +7(727) 330 3200, D: +7 (727) 244 6868, www.pwe.com/kz
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Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Rf&wq‘{ﬁ?fl‘ouse C)OO/DQI'S é(_P

27 February 2018
Almaty, Kazakhstan

Signed by:

Allonyanee

Azamat Konratiev

Audit Partner

(The Association of Chartered Certified
(General State License of the Ministry Accountants Certificate Neoo770863 dated
of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan 8 May 2003)

Neoooooos dated 21 October 1999)

Signed by:

(Qualified Audito o ficate
N200000465 dated 14 November 1998)



“Semizbay-U” LLP
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

In thousands of US Dollars Note 2017 2016
Revenue 8 63,770 71,277
Cost of sales 9 (52,143) (50,012)
Gross profit 11,627 21,265
Other operating income 12 139 165
Distribution expenses 10 (218) (224)
General and administrative expenses 1" (3,245) (3,082)
Other operating expenses 13 (1,627) (754)
Impairment losses 4 (10,661) -
Operating (loss)/profit (3,985) 17,370
Finance income 14 329 1,821
Finance costs 14 (2,646) (3,353)
(Loss)/profit before tax (6,302) 15,838
Income tax benefit/(expense) 15 1,012 (3,812)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (5,290) 12,026

Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 27 84 23
Exchange differences on translation to presentation currency 259 879
Other comprehensive income for the year 343 902
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR (4,947) 12,928
These financial statements were approved by m nt on 27 February 2018
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Batiyev R.A. ) .
General Director /

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



“Semizbay-U” LLP
Statement of Financial Position

In thousands of US Dollars Note 2017 2016
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 25 47
Property, plant and equipment 16 20,722 33,941
Mine development assets 17 19,852 22,356
Mineral rights 18 1,200 1,326
Trade and other receivables 19 574 645
VAT recoverable 343 1,789
Restricted cash 26 2,734 2,316
Total non-current assets 45,450 62,420
Current assets

Inventories 20 13,919 13,018
Trade and other receivables 19 18,772 17,050
VAT recoverable and other tax prepayments 1,384 1,847
Other financial assets 4 4
Advances given and other assets 21 617 1,034
Prepaid income tax 641 1,508
Cash and cash equivalents 22 534 1,076
Total current assets 35,871 35,537
TOTAL ASSETS 81,321 97,957
EQUITY

Charter capital 23 71,537 71,537
Currency translation reserve (47,086) (47,345)
Retained earnings 11,823 18,922
TOTAL EQUITY 36,274 43,114
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Liability for historical costs 25 141 774
Site restoration provision 26 8,130 6,192
Trade and other payables 29 224 193
Employee benefits 27 180 285
Deferred tax liability 15 - 1,156
Total non-current liabilities 8,675 8,600
Current liabilities

Loans and borrowings 24 28,578 36,656
Other provisions 26 391 559
Trade and other payables 29 3,733 4,556
Other taxes and obligatory payments 30 2,911 3,362
Employee benefits 27 14 (1)
Current income tax liabilities - 354
Liability for historical costs 25 682 699
Other liabilities 28 63 58
Total current liabilities 36,372 46,243
TOTAL LIABILITIES 45,047 54,843
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 81,321 97,957

These financial statements were approved by manag

Batiyev R.A. i @
General Director
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“Semizbay-U” LLP

Statement of Cash Flows
In thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers 65,778 65,731
VAT refund from budget 1,869 2,971
Interest received 140 102
Other receipts 349 1,406
Payments to suppliers (29,942) (27,847)
Other taxes and payments to budget (10,214) (12,050)
Payments to employees (6,215) (5,447)
Other payments (2,004) (2,236)
Cash flows from operating activities 19,761 22,630
Income tax paid (1,223) (4,312)
Interest paid (1,695) (2,505)
Net cash from operating activities 16,843 15,813
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of mine development assets (4,615) (6,118)
Purchase of construction in progress (681) (1,558)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,266) (880)
Placement of restricted cash (418) (392)
Net cash used in investing activities (6,980) (8,948)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 82,702 104,975
Repayments of loans and borrowings (90,952) (104,838)
Dividends paid (1,800) (7,341)
Net cash used in financing activities (10,050) (7,204)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (187) (339)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,076 1,676
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents (355) (261)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 534 1,076

Batiyev R.A.
General Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



“Semizbay-U” LLP
Statement of Changes in Equity

Currency
Charter translation Retained Total
In thousands of US Dollars capital reserve earnings equity
At 1 January 2016 71,537 (48,224) 6,873 30,186
Profit for the year - - 12,026 12,026
Other comprehensive income - 879 23 902
Total comprehensive income for
the year - 879 12,049 12,928
At 31 December 2016 71,537 (47,345) 18,922 43,114
Loss for the year - - (5,290) (5,290)
Other comprehensive income - 259 84 343
Total comprehensive loss for the
year - 259 (5,206) (4,947)
Dividends paid - - (1,893) (1,893)
At 31 December 2017 71,537 (47,086) 11,823 36,274

el
Batiyev R.A. <
General Director .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



“Semizbay-U” LLP
Notes fo the Financial Statements — 31 December 2017

1. The Company and its Operations

These- financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{the “IFRS") for the year ended 31 December-2017 for “Semizbay-U’ LLP {the “Company”).

Cn 2 June 2008 the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources of the Republic of Kazakhstan
{hereinafter — the “Ministry of Industry and New Technologies of the Republic of Kazakhstan) (the “Competént Body”)
and Joint Stock Company: National Atomic Company “Kazatomprom” (the."NAC KAP”) signed the subsoil use contract.
for.Semizbay field.

The Company was: established on 12 December 2006 as 100% subsidiary of NAC KAP (Registration certificate
Ne 75-1802-25-T0Q),

On 5-July 2007 the subsail use right for Semizbay field was transferred to the Company. During 2008 the share of
MAC KAP inthe Company reduced from 100%:t0 11%. Initial reduction of the share by 40% occurred due to contribution
by. NAC KAP subsidiary, Mining Comparny LLP, to the Company's charter capital in-the form of transfer of subsolt use
right for the Irkol field. Further reduction was due to sale of 49% share.in the.Company to «BeijingSino — Kaz Uranium
Resources investment Company Limited». As of 31 December 2017 the Company's participants were NAC. KAP and
“BeijingSino ~ Kaz Uranium Resources. investment Company Limited” with 51% and 49% shares held respectively.

The Company's registered address is 34, Birzhan Saly street, Stepnyak, Enbekshily district, Akmola region, Republic
of Kazakhstan.

The principal activities of the Company are extraction, preliminary processing and sale of uraniufm oxide on Semizbay
and Irkol fields, Semizbay field is located in Akmola and North-Kazakhstan regions. The commercial production of
uranium from Semlzbay is carried out from December 2009. The commercial production of uranium from Irkol fi eld,
located in Kyzylorda region, is carried out from October 2007.

Total number of employeesis 551 (2016: 563)..

2, The Company's Operating Environment:

The economy of the Republic of Kazakhstan displays certain characteristics of an emerging market. It is particularly
sensitive to prices for mineral resources, which constitute: major part of the country's export. These characteristics
in¢lude, but are not limited 1o, the existence of national currency that is not freely convertible outside of the country and
a low level of fiquidity of debt and equity securities in the markets. The ‘tax, currency customs legislations. of
the Republic.of Kazakhstan continue to develop and are subject to varying interpretations (Note 31).

The maintaining uncertainty and volafility of the financial markets, especially in Europe and Russian Federation, and
other risks may have ‘a negative impact on Kazakhstan financial and corporate sector. Management performed the
assessment of a probable impairment of the Company’s non-current. assets based on the existing economic sifuation
and its: prospecis {Note 4). The. future econemic and regulatory situation may differ from: management's - current
expectations.

3. Summaryof Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

These finanicial statements have been prepared in accordance with Interriational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSY
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the initiat recognifion of financial instruments based on fair value.

The principal accountlng pelicies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
pel:cues have been consisténtly applied to al the periods presented, uniess otherwise stated (Note 5).

Foreign currency franslation
(i) Functionaf and presentation currency

The functional _currency of the. Company is the currency"of the primary economic :envircnment in which. the entity
operatas. The’ Company s functional currency is the national currency of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Kazakhstarni
Tenge. All amounts in these financial statements are presenied in thousands of US Dollars, unless otherwise stated.,
These financial statements wére issued in additior to the statutary financial statéments of the Comipany {presented in
Tenge) for presentation to shareholders.



“Semizbay-U" LLP _ _
.Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The results and financial position of the Company are transiated into the presentation currency as follows;

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
respeclive reporting period;

- income and expenses. are translated af average exchange rates (unless this average is.not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing.on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions);

- components. of'equity ‘are translated :at the historic rate; and

- allresulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are trahslated into the funclionat currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the dates
of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions or from the
translation at: year-gnd exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in- foreign currencies are
recognised in profit-or loss. Translation at year-end does not applyr to non:monetary items that are carried at historic
cost..

‘At 31 December 2017, the principal rate of exchange used-for translating. foreign currency balances was 1 US Dollar =
Tenge 332.33 (2016 1 US Dollar = Tenge 332, 29) Exchange restrictions and’ currency controls - exist relating to
converting Ténge into other currencies. At present, Tenge is not freely convertible currency in most countries outside
of the Republic of Kazakhstar.

Financial Instruments
(i) Key measurement terms

Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value, cost, or amortised cost as described
below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to self an asset or paid to transfer a Ilahlllty in an orderly transaction
between market partlclpants atthe measurement date. The best evidence of fair valug is the: price inan active market,

An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume .
to provide pricing information on an engoing basis.

Fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as the product of the quoted price for the
‘individual asset or ||ab|I|’(y and the number of instruments: held by the entity. This is the case even if a market's normal
daily-trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the quantny held and placing orders to sell the position in a single
transaction might affect the quoted price.

A portfolio of financial derivatives or other-financial .assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is
‘measured at the fair value of a group of financial-assets and fi nancial liabilities on the basis of the price that wouid be
received to sell @ net long pesition {i.e: an asset) for a particUlar risk exposure or paid to transfer a- net short position
{i.e.a Ilablllty) for a particular risk exposure in an orderly transaction betweén market participants at the measurement
date. This is applicable for assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis if the Company: (a) manages the group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of the entity’s net exposure {o-a particular market risk ({or risks) or
tothe credit risk of a particular counterparty in accordance with the entity’s documented risk management or investment
strategy; (b} it provides information on that basis about the group of assets and liabllities to the entity's key management
personnel; and (&) the market risks, including duration of the entity's exposure to a. particular market risk (or risks)
arising from the financial asséts and financial liahilities are ‘substantially the same.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm's length transactions or
.consideration of fi nangiat data of the investees are used fo measure fair value of certain financial instruments for which
external market pricing information is not available, Fair vaiue measurements are analysed by level in the fair value
hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are measurements at guoted prices (unadjusted) in sictive markets for |dent|cal assets
“or liabilities, (i} leve! two measurements. are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or
liability, either directiy {that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), -and (tii) level three measurements
‘are valuations riot based on solely observable market data (that js, the measurement requires significant unobservable
inputs). Transfers between lévels of the fair value hierarchy are deeimed to-have. ocourréd at the end of the reporting
period.



“Semizbay-U"LLP | N
Notes to the Financial Statemerits = 31 December 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,.isstie or disposal of a financial

Jinstrument. An incremental cost is.one that would not have- been incurréd if the' transaction had not taken place.

Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid fo agents {including employees acting- as selling agenis),
advisars, brokers and dealers; levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Transaction costs do not inciude debt prémiums or discounts, ﬂnancmg costs or internal administrative or holding costs )

Amortised cost is the:amount at which the financial instrument was recaghised at inifial recagnition léss any principal
repayments plus or minus accrued interest, and for financial assets less -any write-down for incurred impairment losses
{direct or through the use of reserve). Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction costs deferred at initial
recognmon and of any premium or discount to the maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accried interest
income -and accrued interest expense, including both accried ceupon income: and -2amortised - discount or premicm
{including fees deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included in the carrying values of

“the related itéms in the statement of financial position.

The effeciive inferest methiod is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant period; so
as 1o achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying amount. The effective interest.
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts.(exctuding future credit losses) through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter pariod, if apprapriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
instrument. The effective interest raté discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repricing
date, except for the premium or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the
instrument, or othér variables that are not reset to market rates.

Such premiums or discounts are amortised over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present vatue calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

(if) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets have the following categorles: (a) loans and receivables; {b) avaitable-for-sale financial assets;
(c) financial -assets held to maturity and (d) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Financia! assets at fair
value through profit or loss have two sub-categories: (i) assets designated as such upon initizl recognition,
and'{ii) those classified as held for trading.

Financial assets of the Company are presented by “loans and trade receivables” and comprise financial assets within
trade and other receivables {Note- 19}, financial assets as part of advances given and other assets {Note 21}, réstricted
cash.(Note 26), cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) and other financial assets.

Loans and trade receivables are unquoted non-derivative ﬁnan_cia! assets-with fixed or determinable payments other
than those that the Company intends to sell in the near temm:.

(i) Classification of financial liabilities

Financia! liabilities have.the following measurement categories: (a) held for trading which also includes financial
derivatives. and {b) other financial liabilities. Liabilities held for trading are carried at fair value with changes in value
recognised in profit or loss for the year (as finance income or finance costs) in the period:in which they arise. Other
financial fiabilities are cartied at-amortised cost.

Fingncial liabilities of the Company are presented by “other financial liabilities” ahd comprise loans and borrowings
(Note-24), financial liabilities within trade and other payables (Note 29), liability for historical costs (Note 25) and other
financial Habilities (Note 28),

{iv) Initial récognition of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value plus transaction costs. Fair value at initial recognition is best
evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition is only recorded if there is a difference between
fair value and fransaction price which can be evidenced by other observable current market transactions in the $ame
instrument or by a valuation technigue whose inputs include only data from observable markets.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the fime frame established by regulation or
market convention (‘regular way” purchases. and sales) are reécorded at trade date, which is the date on which the
Company commits to deliver a financial asset. All-other purchases are recognised when the entity becomes.a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

For the purposes of identification of fair value of loans: given that are not: circularised on-active market the Company
usés such valuation methods as discounted cash flow. The differences: riay appear between fair value recognised at
origination that is considered the transaction cost and recaiculated amount. Such differences are amortised during the
whole peried of loans given.
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“Semizbay-U” LLP _ _ _
Notes to the Financial Statements— 31 December 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contiriued)
(v)-Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognlses financial assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights to cash flows from. the
assets otherwise expire or (b} the Company has.tfransferred the rights to the cash flows from the financial assets or
entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement whilst (i} also transferring substantially ali the risks and rewards of
ownership-of the assets or (i} neither transferring nor retalmng substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership but
nat retaining control,

Control-is retained if the counterparly daes not have the practical ability fo self the asset In its entirety to-an unrelated
third party without needing to impose additional restrictions-on the sale.

{vi) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial agsets and liabilities are offset and the ret amount reported in the statement of financial position only when

-there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an infention 1o either settle on a net

basis, or to realise the asset and setile the liability simuttaneously.
Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measuremnent of properiy, plant and equipment

Property, plant and eqmpment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and pravision for impairment, where
required. Cost comprises purchase price, includirig import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for its intended use. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of productlon overheads. The individual significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment (components), whose useful lives are- different from the useful life. of the given asset as a.whole are
depreciated individually, sipplying depreciation raies reflacting their anticipated usefui lives.

Subsequsnt costs are 1nc!uded in the assetl’s carrying amount ar recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that fiiture econemic benefits associated with the use of the iten will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item ¢an be measured reliably. Spemahsed spare parts and servicing equipment with a significant initial
value and a useful life of rore than one year are recognised as an item of property, plarit ard equipment. Other spare
parts and.servicing-related equipment are recognised as inventories and accounted for in profit.and loss for the year
as’ used.

Costs of minor repairs and day-to-day maintenance: are expensed when Encu_rred. Gost of replacing major parts or
components of property, plant and equipment items are capitaliséd and the replaced part is used.

Gains .and losses on disposals of property plant and equipment-are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss for the year.

(i) Depreciation

tandis notdepremated Depreciation of property, plant and equipment used in extraction of uranium and its preliminary
processing is charged based on production method in respect of items for which this basis best reflects the pattern of
consumption. Deprec:ahon on other items of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method
to allccate their-cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives:

Useful lives in vears

Buildings and constructions 5-25
Machinery and equlpment 1~-20
Vehicles 47
Other 1-10

Each item's estimated useful life-depends on its own useful life limitations and/or term of a subsurface use contract and
the present assessment of economically recoverable reserves of the mine property at which the item is located.

The residual value of an assetis the estimated amount that the Company would curfently obtain from the disposal of
the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset was-already of the age and in the condition expected at the’
end of its useful life. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each repariing period.



“Semizbay-U" LLP
Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Mine development assets

Capitalised mine development assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depréciafion and provision for |rnpa|m1ent
where required.

Mine development assels comprise the capitalised costs of pump-in and pump-out-well drilling, main external bmdmg"
of the well with surface communications and measurement instrumeniation equipment, cost of jon-exchange resin,
estimated cost.of site restoration and other dévelopment costs. Mine development assets are amortised at the mine or-
block level using the unit-of- -production method. Unit-of-production rates are based on proved reserves estimated fo be
recovered from mines (blocks) using existing facilities and operating methods. The estimate of proved reserves is based
on reserve reports which are integral part of each subsoil use. agreement These reserve reports are incorporated into
feasibility models which are approved by the government and detail thé totat proven reserves and estimated scheduled
extraction by year.

Intangible assets
(i) Recognition and measurement of intangible assels

The Cempany's mtanglble assets have definite usefu! lives and primarily include acquired computer software. Acquired.
computer software are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acqwre and bring them fo use.

(ii} Arrortisation of intangible assefs
Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over their usefll lives:

Useful fives in years
Softwara- 3-25

If impaired, the. carrying amount of intangible assets is written. down to the_hfghe‘r of value in use and fair value less
costs fo sell,

Mineral rights

Mineral rights are stated at cost, l8ss accumulated deprec:atlon and provision for impairment, where reguired.
The capitalised cost of acquisition of mineral r:ghts comprises subscription bonus, the cost of subsurface use nghts
and capitalised historical costs. The Company is obliged te reimburse historical costs incurred by the government in
respect of licensing areas prior to license being issued.

These historical costs are recognised as part of the acquisition cost with a corresponding fability equal to'the present
value of payments made.during the license.period.

Mineral rights-are amortised using production method based upon proved reserves commencing when uranium first
starts to be extracted.

The estimate of proved reserves is based.on reserve reports which are integral parf of each subsoil use agreement.
These reserve reports are incorporated into fea5|blllty models which are approved by the authority and detail the total
proven reserves.and estimated scheduled extraction by year.

Impairment of non-financial assets’

The carrying amounts of the ‘Cempany’s non-financial assets (other than inventories .and deferred tax assets) are
reviewed at each reporting date to.determine whether there is any indication of impairment. [f any such indication exists,

management estimates the recoverable amount, which is determined as the hlgher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sefi {the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset or cash generatlng unit in an-arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costsof disposal) and its value in use (being the net present value 6f expected
future cash flows of the relevant cash generating unit). In assessing valug in use, the estimated future cash flows are.
discounted to their présent value using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of meney and the risks specific to the asset for-which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

If it is-not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company determines the recoverable’
amount of the cash- generatmg unit to which the asset belongs. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group
of assets or asset that generates cash inflows that sre largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of asseis.
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3. ‘Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The estimates used for impairment reviews are based on detailed mine layouts and operating budgets; modified as
approprfate to meet the requiremeants of IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”. Futire cash flows are based on:
- estimates of the volumes of the reserves forwhich there is a high degree of confidence of ecanomic.extraction;
- future production levels;

- future commedity prices (assuming the current market prices will revert o the Company's assessment of
the long term average price, generally overa period of three o five years); and

- future costs.of preduction and other operating and capital expenditures.

if the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amounit, the assel is- impaired and an impairment loss is
charged to profit and loss for the year so as to reduce the carrying amount in-the statement-of financial position to its

‘recoverable amount: An Jmpalrrnent loss recognlsed for an-asset in prior years is reversed where appropriate if there

has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's value in use or fair value. less costs to sell.
The amount of this reversal is limited to the carrying amount, that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if
na impairment loss had been recognised in prior years.

Operating leases

Where the Company is a lessee in-a lease which does nat transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to.
ownership from the lessorte the Company, the total lease payments are charged to profit or loss for the year on
a siraight-line basis over the. lease term. The lease term is the non-canceflable period for which the lessee has
contracted fo lease the asset together with any further terms for which the lessee has the option io continue fo lease
the asset, with or without further payment, when at the mcep‘non of the lease it i§ reasonably certain that the lssee will
exercise the option.

Ineome taxes

Income taxes have been provided forin the finanicial statements in accordance with legislation enacted or substaniwely
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The income tax charge/{credit) comprises-current tax and deferred tax and
is recognised in profit or loss for the year, except if it is recognised in other comprehenswe income of directly in equity-
because it relates to fransactions that are also recognised, in the same or a different period, in other comprehensive
income or dirgclly in equity.

Gurrent taxis the amount expected to be paid to, or recovered from, the taxation authont;es in respect of taxable profits
or losses for the current and prior periods. Taxable profits or Iosses are-based on estimates if financial statements are
authorised pncr to filing relevant tax returns. Taxes other than on income are récorded within operating expenses.

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assels.and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financia! reperting
purposes. In accordance with the initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes are not recorded for termporary.
differences on initial recognition of an asset or @ liability in a transaction other than a business combination if
the transaction, when initially recorded, affects neither- accounting nar taxable profit..

Deferred tax liabilities are not recorded for temporary differences on initial recognitioni of geodwill, and subsequently
far geodwill which is not deductible for tax purposes. Deferred tax balances are measured at tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the' end of the reporting period, which are &xpected. to apply 1o the period when
the temporary differences will reverse or the tax loss carry forwards wilt be utilised.

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded only fo the éxtent
thiat it is probable-that there is sufficient future taxable profit available against which the deductions can be utilised.

Uncertain tax positions

The Company's.uncertain {ax positions are reassessed by management at the end of each reporting period, Liabiliies
are recorded for income tax positions that are determined by management as moré likely than not fo result in'additional
taxes being levied if the positians were to be challenged by ihe tax authorities. The assessment is based on the.
interpretation of tax laws that have been enacted.or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod and any
known court or other rulings on such issues. Liabilities: for penalties, interest and taxes other than on income are.
recognised based on management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations at the end of

the reporting period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade arid other receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Centinued)
inventories

invenitories are recorded at the lower of cost and. net realisable value, The cost of inventory is determined on
the weighted average basis. The ¢ost of finished goods and work in progress camprises raw material, direct labour,

otherdirect costs and related production overheads {based on the normal operating. capacify} but excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the. estimated ‘selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of
completion and selling expenses.

Impairment of financial dssets recognised at amortised cost

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss when incurred as a result of one more events (“loss events”) that
occurred after the initlal recognition of the financial. asset and which have an impact on the amount or- timing of the.
estimated future cash flows of the fi nanmal asset or group of financial assets that can be refiably estimated. If the
Company determines that ro objective evidence exists that impairment was incurred for an individually assessed
financial -asset, whether mgmﬁcant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk.
characteristics, and collectively assesses them for impairment. The primary factors that the Company considers in
determining whether a finanicial assst is impaired are its overdue status and reallsablhty of related collateral, if any.

The following other principal criteria-are also used to deterrhiné whether there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has occurred:

- .overdue of any installment, where the late payment is not explained by a delay in the settlement systems;

- the counterparty experiences significant financiat difficulties that are supported by the financial inforination
held by the Company;

- the counterparty considérs bankruptey or a finangial reorganisation;

- thereis adverse change in the payment status of the counterparty as a result of changes in national or lccal
economic conditions that impact the counterparty,; ot

- the value of collateral, if any, significantly decreases as a result of deteriorating market conditions,

Impairment losses are always recognised through a provision in such amount to bring the asset's carrying value to the
present value of expected cash flow (which-exclude fufure credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the asset, The calculation of the present value of the estimated future-cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selltng'
the-collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event octuriing after the impairmient was: recognised (for example, an improveément in the debtor's credit rating},
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the prowsmn through profit or loss for the year

Uncollectible: -assets are written off against the related impairmient loss. provision after all the necessary prdcedures to
fully or partially recover are completed and the final amount of the loss is determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written-off are credited to.the impairment loss account within the profit or loss for the year.

Prepayments

Prepayments are’ carried at cost less provision for impairment. A prepayment is- classified as non-current when
the goods or services relating fo the prepayment are expected.to be obtained after one year, or when the: prepayment
relates to an asset which will itself be classified as non-current upon inifial recognition. Prepayments to acquire assets.
are transferred to the carrying amount of the asset once the Company has obtained control of the asset and it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset'will flow to the Cofmpany. Other prepayments are
written off to profit or loss when the goods or services relating to the prepayments are received. If there is
an Indication that the assets, goods or services relating to a prapayment will not be received, the carrying value of
the prepaymént is written down - accordingly and a corresponding impairment: loss is recogmsed in profit or loss for
the year.

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equwalents include cash in hand deposits held at cali with banks; and other short-term highly-liquid
investments with original maturities. of three months or 1éss. Cash and cash equivalents are carried- at amortised -cost
using the effective interest method.

Dividends

Dividends are tecorded as a liability and deducted from equity in-the period in which they are declared-and approved.
Any dividends declared after the reporting period and before the financial statements are authorised for issue are
disclosed in the “Events after reporting period” note.
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3. Summary of Significant-Accounting Policies {Continued)
Value added fax

Value added tax {VAT} related to sales is payable to the tax authorities when goods -afe shipped or services are
rendered. Purchase VAT can be offset against sales VAT upon the receipt of a tax invoice from a supplier.
Tax legislation allows the settlement of VAT on a net basis. Accordingly, VAT related to sales and purchases unsettled

at the ‘separate balance sheet date is slated on a riet basis for each tax payer. Recoverable VAT is classified as

non-current if its setflement is'not expected within one. year after the reporting period.

Loans and borrowings

Loans-and borrowings are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Trade payables

‘Trade payables are accrued when the counterparty performs its. obligations under the contract are accounted for at-
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Site restoration provision.

Assets ratirernent obllgations are recognised when it is probable that the costs would be incurred and those costs can
be measured reliably. Asset retirement obligations include the costs of rehabilitation and costs of liquidation (demiclition
of buildings, constructions and, mfrastructure dismantiing of machinery and equipment, transportation of the residual
materials, environmental clean-up, monitoring of wastes and land restoration). Provision for the estimated costs of
Ilqmdailon rehabilitation and restoration are established and charged to the cost of property, ptant ‘and equipment in
the reporting period when an obligation arises from the respective land disturbance in the course of mine development
or environment pollution, based on the discounted value. of estimated future costs. Movements in the provision for.
assets retirement obligations, resulting from updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated term of operations and
revisions to discount rates are capitalised within property, plant and equment in the current period. These ¢osts.are
then depreciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate using. the depreciation methods applied to those
assets.

Movements in the.provision for asset retirement obligations that relate to disturbance caused by the produgtion phase
are charged fo-profit or loss forthe year,

Provision for asset tetirement obligations do not include any additional obligations which are expected to arise fram
future disturbances, The costs are estimated on the basis of a clesure and restoration plan, The cost estimates are
talculated annually during the course of the Operatlons to reflect known developments e.q. updated cost estimates
and revised term eslimated lives of operations, and-are. sub}ect to formal reviews on a regular basis. Although the finaf
cost to be incurred:is uncertain, the Company estimates its costs based on feasibility and engineering. studies using
current restoration standards and techniques for conducting restoration-and retirement works.

The amortisation or “unwinding” of the discount applied in establishing the net present value-of provisions is charged
to profit or loss in each reporting period. The amertisation of the discount is disclosed as finance costs.

Provisions for liabilities and charges

_Provisions for liabilities and charges are non-financial liabilities of uncertain timing or amount, They are accrued when

the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be mada.

12
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from salé of goods is recognised when risks and rewards associated with the ownership are transferred,
usually when goods are shipped. If the Company akes responsibility to deliver the goods:to certain delivery point
the revenue is recognised in the moment of transfer of goods fo the buyer at the destination.

Sales are shown net of VAT and discounts. Revenug is measured at the fair value of the consideratior received or

Teceivable. When the fair.value of goods received in a barter transaction cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is

measured at the fair valug of the goods or service given up.

Terms of delivery of uranium products are determined by specific sale contracts with buyers, usually in accordarice
with the Incoterms: classification. Delivery of uranium products oceurs: at the date of actual physical delivery of goads
according to Incoterms, or at the date of book-transfer to the account of converfer specified by customer. Book-transfer
operation represefits a transaction whereby uranium account balance of the transferor is decreéased with simultaneous
allocation of uranium to the {ransferee’s uranium account-with the same speciafised conversion/raconversion entity.

Interestincome is 'recognised'on a time-proportion basis using the effective in_teres_tf-m_ethod.

Employee benefits

(i} Long-term employee benefits

The Company provides Idn_g—'tenn employee benefits fo its _emp[oy_eas in accordance with the provisions of the collsctive
agreement. The agreement provides for financiai aid for employees’ disability, retirement benefit; funeral aid and other

payments 10 the Company's employees. The enfitlemerit fo some henefits is usuaily conditional on the employee
remaining employed untii the retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period.

The Company does-not have any funded post-employment plans. Llabrllty recognlsed at each reporting date represents

the present value of the plan Tiakilities. Actuarial gains and losses arising in the year are taken to the profit or loss far
the year. For this purpose, -actuarial gains-and losses ‘comprise both the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions

and experience adjustments arising because of differences between the previous actuarial assumplions‘and what has

“actually-occurred,

Actua_ﬁal_gains- and losses on other post-employment obligations. such as, exp_erience adjustments and the.effects of
cha'nges in actuarial assumptions recognised in other comprahensw'e income in the peried occurred. Other movements.
in the present value. of the: pian liabilities.are also recognised in the profit or loss for the year, including: current service
cost.

The most significant:assumptions used in accountmg for defined benefit obligations.are the-discount rate, staff turnover
and the mortaltty assumptions. The discount rate is used to determine the net present value of future liabitities and
each year the unwmdlng of the discount on those liabilities is charged to profit or loss for the year as finance cost. The
mortality assumption is used to project the future stream of benefit. payments, which is then discounted to-arrive at a
net present value of liabilities.

Employee benefits, including financial aid for employees' disability to the Company’s employees and other payments
are cohsidered as other long-term employee. benefits. The entitiement to these benefits is usually conditional on the:
complétion of 2 minimum service period. The expected cost of these benefits is accrued over the period of employment.
using the same accounting methodology as used for the defined bensfit plan. These obligaticns are valued -annually
by independent qualified actuaries.

{if) Payroll expenses and related charges.

Wages, salaries, contributions to pensmn and social insurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and
non-monetary benefits-are accrued in the year in‘which the associated services are rendered by the- employees of the
Company. In accordance with the legal requirements of the Republlc of Kazakhstan the Company withholds pension
contributions from employees’ salary and transfers them into the united pension fund Upon retiremient of employees,
ali pension payments are administered by the united-pension fund.

13
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Notes to the Financial Statements — 31 December 2017

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgerments in Applying Accounting Policies

The Company makes estimates and assumiptions that affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements and
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finaricial year. Estimates and judgemenits are contiriually
evaluated and are based on management's experience and otherfactors, including expectations of future events that
are-befieved to be reasonable underthe circumstances. Management also makes certain judgements; apart fromthose
involving estimations, in the process of applying the accounting policies. Judgemments that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Urahium resarves

Uranium reserves are a critical component of the Company's projected cash flow estimates that are used o assessthe
recoverable values of assetsand to détermine depreciation and amartisation expense.,

Priar to 2017 reserves estimation was performéd based on results of detailed mine exploration and was evaluated and
approved by State Reserves Commission {the “GKZ") of the Repubhc of Kazakhstan Geology Comrittes. Reserves
approved by GKZ are added to State balance and can be- reassessed by GKZ on the basis of additional exploration.

Need for additional éxploration on the mine allotment appears {l) upon finding of new dre bodies during development
activities; (i) when detailed exploration evidences presence of uranium reserves on mine allotment that due a various
reasons have not been assigned as commercial grade reserves and have: not been added to State balance; or
(iii} reserves -write. off upon non-confirmation report. Reserves non-confirmation ocours usually due to violations of
phasing and methodology of exploration activities, unsubstantiated selection of exploration grid density, orincorrect
linkage of ore intersections. Normally upon stripping during production -actual reserves of ach area are greater or
lesser than geological reserves approved by GKZ. Subsurface user reports to the govemment reserves for the mine
as a whole. Instances when balance. reserves -are systematlcally hot -confirmed for the mine. as a whole are rare.

Subsurface user cannot unilaterally change reserves by grades. Expert conclusion: of GKZ is an integral part of
a subsurface use contract -and serves: as ‘a basis for deyelopment of mine (lot) production project and ‘working
programme of the subsurface use contract. Share of approved by GKZ reserves in the-amount of actual production and
approved plarined losses is written off annuaiiy from entity’s balance. Volume of uranium planned for production must
caincide with the working programime of the subsurface use contract and approved production project. Changes to
planned production are prohibited unless production project and working programme of the. subsurface use contract
are revised and appropriately approved. If actual production volumes deviate from approved for less than 20% no
changes are required.

In 2017 the Company decided to use the methad for estimating reserves based on the Austratasian Code for Reporiing’
of Exploration Resuits, Mineral Resources, arid Ore Reserve dated December 2012 {the "JORC Code"), which requires
the use of substantlated assumptions, including:

~  estimation of future production, including proved and estimated reserves, estimation of reserves and liabilities
for expansiori;

'~ expected futlre commodity prices based on the current market price, forward prices, and the Company’s
estimate of the long-term.average price; and

- future.cash expenses for production, capital expenditures and liabilities _for--re_etoration_._

This change in the estimation method did not have a significant effect on these financial statements and was applied
praspectively begmmng from 1. January 2017. Effect on depreciation of production assets recognlsed in 2017 was US.
Dollars 527 thousand.’

impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reportmg period, the Company assesses whether there. is any indication of -impairment of
non-financial assets, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of assets is. estimated and compared 1o their
carrying amount. Any excess of carrying amount aver recoverable amount is récognised as impairmient.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generafing unit répresents the h|gher of the valug in use of this asset or
cash generating unit and its fair value less.costs to sell. The estimation of value in use requires the Campany to make
estimates regarding the Company's future cash flows from usmg assets (generating unit). The estimation of future cash
flows involves significant judgments relating to future market prices, sales volumes, discount rates, inflation, operating
expenses and other factors. The impairment review and estimates are based on assumptions:that are consistent with
the Company's business plans. Due to the subjective nature, these assumptions -could differ from actuat results of
operations and cash flows; and such differences may result in lmpalrment in future periods and decrease of the carrying
value of respective assets.

14
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4, Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies (Continued)
Assels related fo uranjum production

Far the purpose of |mpa|nnent test assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately’ identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets of groups of assets {cash- generating
units}. The Company-identified each mine (¢ontract temtery} asa separate cash-generating unit.

‘As of 31 December 2017 management has determined the decrease of uranium reserves due to use of the new

estimation methiod as an indication of impairment of assets: {cash-generating units) related to uranium praduction on.
Company fields. In addition, the management took into account high production costs on the Semizbay field and the
results of the impairment test on. this.field as of December 31, 2016, which résulted in the slight headrcom between
recoverable amount of the. cash-generating unit and its carrying amount-at higher uranium reserves. Company's
management identified two generating units (Semizbay and irko!) and tested each field individuzlly for impairment,

According to.test resulis, no impairment has been:identified on Irkol field, as the recoverable cost of related a@ssets in
the amount of US Dollars 26,689 thousand exceeded their carrying amount. of US Dollars 24,488 thousand.

For Semizbay field, impaiment was US doltars 10,661 thousand, as the carrying amount of these assets of
US Dollars 31,058 thousand exceeded their recoverable amolint of US Dollars 20,600 thousand.

For Semizbay and Irkol fields, the recoverable cost has been determined based on-calculation of value in use. In these
caleulations, the forecasts of cash flows for the whole validity period of subsurface use contract uritil 2025 and 2030
raspectively were used,

Below are principal assuniptions used by management in calculation -of value in use for Semizbay field to which it is
most sensitiveto:

In thousands of US doliars 2017
Average price per 1 pound™ 23.45-45.67 US Dollar
Discount rate 12.11%
inflation rate 4-7%

Presented. below is the sensitivity analysis disclosing effect of changes in principal assumptions (with all other
parameters held constant) on impairment:

‘Changes in
JIn thousands of US dolfars assumptions. 2017
Average price per 1 pound™ Increased by 6% 750
Discount rate Decreased by 4% 2,775
Iriflation rate Decreased by 1% 1,458

Below are principal:assumptions used.by management in calculation of value in use for Irkol field to which it is most
serisitive to:

in thousands of US dollars 2017
Average price per 1 pound™ 23.45-45.67 US Dollar
Discount rafe 12.11%
Inflation rate 4-7%

Presented below is the sensitivity analysis dlsclesmg possible impairment losses at reasonably possible changes of
principal assumplions {with all other parameters held constant):

Changes in
in thousands of US dollars assumptions. 2017
Average price per 1 pound” Decreased by 2% (-1 ,176)
Discount rate. Increased by 2% (116)
irflation rate increased by 1% (5,104)

* Middie vajue of baseline scenario of the forecast prices changes:for natural uranium concentrate (Mid Price Midpoint) pubhshed by
Ux Consulting LLC for the fourth quarter of 2017 in “Urénium Market Qutiocok” was used for calcilation.
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4, Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies (Continued)

Recognition of defefred tax asset

"The recognised deferred tax asset (Noie 15) represenis income taxes recoverable through future. deductionis from

taxable profits and is recorded in the statement of financial position. Deferred tax asset is.récognised to the extent that
realisation of the related tax benefit is highly probable. Future-tax profits and amounis of tax deductions that are
probabie ta be offset in future are-based on medium-term business models prepared by management and the result.of
its extrapolation to the future. Business models are based on management expectations that are considered reasonabie
under the.current circumstances.

Site restoratlon provision

in accordance with the environmentai legislation and the contracts on subsurface use, the Company has a legal
obligation io remediate’ damage causeéd to the environmerit from its opérations and to decommission its mining assets
and waste polygons and restore a landfill site after its closure, Provision is made, based on'the net present values, for-
site restoration and retirement costs as soon as the cbligation arises from past mining activities.

The provision. for mining assets and waste pclygcns refirement cbllgetlon is estimated based on the Company's.
interpretation of cuirent environmental legisiation in the Republic of Kazakhstan and the Company s related program
for liquidation of subsurface use consequences on the contracted territory and other operations supported by the:
feasibility study and engineering researches in accordance with the existing restoration and retirement standards and
technigues.

Provision for retirement obligations are subject {o potential changes in environmenial regulatory requirements and the
interpretation of the legisiation. Liability to decommission its'mining éssets and waste polygons retirement obiigations
are recognised when-there is.a certainty of incurring such liabilities and when it is possible to measure the amounts
reliably.

Significant judgments used in such estimations include the estimate of discount rate and timing of cash flows. Discount
rate is applied to the nominat costs-the management expects to spend on mining assets retirement end waste polygons
restoration in the future. Accordingly, management's estimates based on current prices are inflated using the expected
long-term inflation rate (2017: 5.4%; 2016: 5.13%), and subsequently discounted using discount rate, The discount rate
reflectsthe current market estimates of the time value of money and thase risks specific ta the liability not reflected in
the best estimate. of the costs. The discount rate used by the Company for calculation of provision as at
31 December 2017 was 9.06% (2016: 7.08%).

As of 31 December 2017 the total the carrylng 'value of site restoration provision was US Dollars 8,130 theusand (20186:
US Dollars 6,192 thousand) (Note 26).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The estimation of the useiul lives: of items of property, plant and equment is & matter of judgment based on the
experience with similar assets. The future economic bensfits embodied in the assets are consumed pringipally through
use, Howsver, other factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence and wWear and tear, often result in -the
diminution of the economic benefits embodied in the assets. Management assesses the remaining useful lives in
accordance with the current technical conditions of the assets and: estimated period during which the assets are
expected to gam benefits for the Company. 7he. following primary factors are considered: (a) the expected usage of
the asssts; (b} the expected physical wear and tear, which depends on opérational factors and maintenance
programme; and (¢} the technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes in markst cenditions:

Most fixed assets are amortised under straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Management reviews the
compliance of the usefullives of assets, at least on an annual basis; any changes could affect prospective depreciation
rates and asset carrying vatues.

Estimated useful life of uranjum mining assets

Property, plant.and equipment related to uranium preduction, mining assets and mineral rights are depreciated over
the respective life of the mine using the unit-of-production method based on mineral reserves, When determining
mineral reserves, assumptions that were valid at the time-of estimation may change when new information becomes
avaitable. Any changes could affect the prospsctive depreciation rates and asset carrying values.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies (Continued)

The calculation of the unit-of-production rate of depreciation could be impacted to the :extent that: actual production in
the future is different from current forecast production, which woiild generally arise as a resuit of significant changes in
any of the factors or assumptions used in estimating minsral reserves. These factors could include:

- changes in mineral reserves;
- the.grade of mineral reserves varying significantly from time to time;

- differences between actual commodity prices and commodity price assumptions used in the estimation of
mineral reserves;

- unforeseen operational issues at mine sites; and

- changes in capital and operating mining, processing -and reclamation costs, discount rates and foreign
exchange rates p055|bly adversely affecting the economic viability of mlneral reserves,

Estimates of ore reserves can differ from period fo period. This ¢an affect the Company’s finaricial resulis, Such
changes in reserves can affect the depreciation charge, carrying amount of assets and site restoration provision.

Related party transactions

In the normal course of business the Company enters into transactions with its related pames In considering each
possible related party relationship, management's attenition is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely'
the legal form. The' Company's related parly transactions result in recagnition of finahcial instruments. 1AS 39 requires
initial recognition of financial instruments based on their fair values. Judgement is applied in determining if transactions.
are priced at market or non-market interest rates, where there is no-active market for such transactions. ‘The basis for
judgement is pricing for similar-types of transactions with unrelatéed parties and effective interest rate analyses. Terms
and canditions of related party balarices are disclosed'in Note 7.

Tax and transfer pricing legislation

Kazakhstani tax and transfer pricing legislation is subject to varying interpretations (Note-31). Regarding the long-term
VAT recoverable, the Company believes that-this VAT can be offset against VAT payable which arises from sale of
uranium products to NAC KAP during 2018-2019.

5. Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations

The following new standards-and interpretations became effective for the Company from 1 January 2017. Acceptance
of the new standards and interpretations did not affect significantly the Company’s financial statements:

—  Recognition-of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses — Amendment to IAS 12 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

- Disclosure Initiative — Amendmentsto IAS 7 (issued on 29 January 2016 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

6. New Accounting Pronouncements.

Certain new standards and interpretations have been issued that-are mandatory for the annual periods of the Company
beginning an or after 1 January 2018 or later, and which the Company has not early adopted.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instrurnents: Classification and Measurement” (amended in July 2014 and effeciive for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018). Key features of the new standard are:

= _Flnancsal assets are required to be classified into three measurement categories: those to be measured.
subsequently at amortised cost, those to be measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive
income {FVOCI)-and those to be meéasured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

- LClassification for debt instruments is driven by the entity’s business model-for managing the financial assets
and whether the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI). I a debt
instrument is held to collect, it may be carried at amortised cost if it also meets the SPP requirement. Debt
instruments that meet the SPP requiremerit that-are held in a portfolto where an entity both holds to collect.
assets' cash flows and sélls assets may be classified as FVOC). Finaricial asséts that do not contain cash
flows that-are SPP| must be'measured at fair value, changes indicated at fair value through profit-and loss {for
sxample, defivative financial instruments). Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from financial
assets but wilt be included in assessing the SPPI condition.
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6. New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

- Investmenis in eguity instruments are always measured: at fair value, However, management can make. an
irrevocable election to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income, provided the instrument
ig not held for trading. If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes in fair value are presented.in profif
or loss.

- Most of the requirements in 1AS 39 for. classification: and measurement of financial liabilities were carried
forward Unchanged to IFRS 9. The key change is that an entity will be required to present the effects of
changes in own credit. tisk of financial liabilities designated af fair value. through profit or loss in other
comprehensive income.

- IFRS 2 infroduces a new medel for the' recognltlon of impairment losses - the expected crédit losses {ECL)
model. There is a ‘three stage’ approach which is based on the change i in credit quality of financial assets
since initial recogmtlon In practice, the new rules mean that entities will have to record an immediate loss
equal to'the 12-month ECL on initial recognition 'of fitancial assets that.are not credit impaired (or_llfetlme ECL
for trade receivables). Where there has been a significant increase. in credit risk, impairment is mieasured
using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. The model includes operational simplifications for lease and
trade receivables.

- Hedge accounting requirements ware-amended to align accounting more closely with risk management. The
standard provides entities with an accounting policy ‘choice between applying the hedge. accounting
requirements of IFRS & and continuing to-apply IAS 39 to all hedges because the-standard currently does not
address accounting for macro hedging.

Based on -an analysis of the Company’s fi nancial assets and financial liabiities as at-31 December 2017 and on the
basis of the facts and circurnstances that exist at that date, the management of the Company is expecting .an
|n3|gmt'cant impact on'its financial statéments from the adoption of the new standard on 1 January 2018.

The following table reconciles the carrying amaunis of financial assets, from their previous measurement categories’in
accordance with IAS 39 info their new measurement categories upen transition to IFRS 8 on-1 January 2018:

Measurement category Carrying Effact ‘Carrying

value per Remeasurement Reclassification value per

IAS 39 IFRS 9

{closing ) {opening

balance at Expected balance at

{in thousards of _ 31 December credit _ Manda- _ 4. January

/S dotfars) {IAS) 39 {IFRS) 9 2017) losses Other tory Voluntary 2018)
Cash and cash Loans and Amortised _

equivalents receivables cost. 834 - - - - 534

Trade Loansand  Amortised
-receivables receivables cosi. 18,772 - - - 18,772

No sig_niﬁcant changes are expected to impact the measurement oi‘"ﬁnanc_iél’_liabilities._

The new staridard alsd introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected
fo change the nature.and extent of the Company’s disclosures about its financial instruments particutarly in'the year of
the-adoption of the new standard.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016. (issued on 8 December 2016 and effective from 1 January 2018 in ferms
of application of improvements to IFRSs).

IFRS-15*Revenue from Coniracts with Custemers” (issved on 28 May 2014 and effective for the periads. hegihning on
or after 1 January 2018). The new standard introduces the core:principle that revenus must be recegnised when the
goods. or services are. transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Any bundled goads or services that are’
distinct must be separately recognlsed and-any discounts of rebates on the contract price' must generally be allocated
to the separate elements. When the consideration varies for- any reason, minimum amounts must be récigrised if they
are not at significant risk of reversal. Costs incurred to secure contracts with customers have to be capitatised and
amortised over the period when the benefits of the contract are consumed. Based on the analysis of the NAC KAP
reveriué streams for the year ended 31 December 2017, individual-contracts’ terms and on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at that date, in view of full retrospective method appllcatlon the management of the Company
is expecting an insignificant impact on its financial statemenis from the adoption. of the new standard on
1 January 2018.
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6. New Accounting Pronhouncements (Continued)

Amendments fo IFRS 15, Revenue from Conlracts with Customers (issued on 12 April 2016 and effective for anniizal
periods beginning on or affer -1 January 2018). The amendments do not change the underlying principles of the-
Standard but clarify how those principles shouid be.appfied. The amendments clarify how fo identify a performance-
obhgatlon (the promise to transfer a geod or a seérvice to a customner) in a contract; how to determine whether a company
is.a principal (the provider of a good or service) or.an agent {responsiblé for arranging for the good or service to be
prowded) and how to determine whether the revenue from granting a licence should be recognised at-a point in time
or over time. In addition to the clarifications, the amendments. include two additional reliefs to reduce cost and
compléxity for a company ‘when it first-applies the new standard. Currently, the. Company is: assessing the impact of
the-amendment on its financial statements.

IFRS 16, Leases (issued on 13 January 2016 and eﬁectsve for annual periods begmnmg on or after 1 January 2019 or
in application of IFRS 15). The new standard sets out the pnnmpies far the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases. All leases result in the lessee obtaining the right to' use an asset at the start of the lease and,
if lease payments are. made over time, also obtaining financing. Accordingly, IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of.
leasés as eithéer operattng leases or finance leases as is required by IAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee
accounting model. Lessees wili be requwed to recognise: {a) assets and liabilities for all leases with & term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value; and (b) depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on
lease liabilities in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessar accotnting requrrements in 1AS 17. Accordingly; a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating ieases.
or finance léases, and to account for those two types of lsases dlf'ferently

The amendments-to IFRS 4 contain additional insfructions on application of IFRS 9 (effective for annual pericds
beginning on 1 January 2078).

The new standards and interpretations are not expected fo affect significantly the Company_’s_-ﬁ:nancial' statements.

7. Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

Parties are generally considered to be related if the parties are under common controi or.if one party has the ability to
control the other party or cah exercise significant infiuence.or joint controt over the other party in making financial and
operatiohal decisions. In considering each possible related party retationship, atterition is directed.to the substance of
the relationship, not merely.the legal form,

At 31 December 2017 the. outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

_in thousands of US Doflars Trade receivables  Advances given Trade payables
Comipany’s participants 7,485 10 14
Bubsidiaries and associates of pamc:lpants 11,305 68 2,271
Other related parties - 21 118
Total 18,770 89 2,403

Income and expense items with related parties Tor the year ended 31 December 2017 were as follows:

F_'ur_c_h'asé: of

Sale of goods goods and
iri thousands of 18 Dollars and services: services
‘Subsidiaries and associates of participants 33,217 4
Company's participarits 30,553 17,665
Other related parties - 1,068
“Total 63,770 18,774
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7. Balances and Transactions with Related Parties (Continued)

At 31 December 2016 the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

In thousands of US Doltars Trade receivables  Advances given Trade payables
Company’s participarits 16,779 19 -
‘Subsidiaries and asscciates of participants 183 19 3,240
Other related parties - 3 20
Total 16,962 41 ‘3,260

Income and expense items with related parties for the year ended 31 Decembet 2016 were as follows:

‘Purchase of

_ Sale of goods goods and
In thousands of US Dallars and services services
Company's participants 35,294 778
Subsidiaries and asscciates of participants 35,984 23,092
Other related parties: - 136
Total 71,278 24,006
The table below shows the remuneration of key management personnel:
_ 2017 2016
In thousands of US Dollars Expenses: Liability Expenses: Liability
Short-term payments 3
Salaries and bonuses 222 16 190 8
Total 222 16 190 8
8. Revenue
In thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Sale of produced uraniIUm.products- 63,770 71,277
Total revenue 63,770 71,277
9. Costof Sales
In thousanis.of US Dollars 2017 2016
Depreciation and amortisation 13,957 11,152
Materials and suppties 12,317 14,360
Mineral extraction tax 8,393 8,847
Payrall and related expenses 6,599 6,070
Third party services on praduction and processing. 5,343 5,406
Repairs and maintenance 1,335 656
Cost of mine services 578 o54
Other taxes 534 504
Transporiation.costs. 382 472
Use of provision for impairment of inveniaries (160) -
Other 2,865 2291
Total cost of sales 52,143 50,012
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10. Distribution Expenses

I thousand's of US Dollars 2017 2016
Payroli-and related expenses 94 82
Expeditor services 35. 50
Business trip expenses 35 32
Rent expenses _ 22 7
Leading and transportation expenses 18 42
Insurance 3 3
Other 1M 8
Total distribution expenses 218 224
11. General and .A'dministrati\re’Ekpens'es
i thotisands of S Doflars. 2017 2016
Payroll and related expenses 1,6_99. 1,498
Audit and proféssional services 314 162
Fines and pénalties 274 12
Training expenses 185 207
Rent expenses 174 151
Entertainment expenses 162 73
Provision for/(recovery of} doubtful debts 87 (10)
Business trip expenses 72 44
Communication services. 46 24
Materials and supplies 43 42
Repairs and maintenance 36 53
Depregiation and amortisation 22 33
Office supplies 14 13
Bank servicés 8 19
Tax expenses’ 1 30
Security services. . ) 25
Provision for fines and penalties- as a result of tax inspection - 538
Material aid to employses - 53
Other experises 107 125.
Total general and administrative expenses 3,245- 3,082
12. Other Operating income
In thousands of US Dolfars. 2017 2016
Income on fines and penalties _ 82 50
Income from sale of ottier goods and services i 25
Write off of doubtful liabilities 16 18
Other income 10 72
Total other operating income 139 165
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13. Other Operating Expenses.

In thousarids of S Dolfars 2017 2016
Paymenis made to “Park of Innovative Technologies” 614 -
Provision for inventory impairment 424 356
.Loss on disposal of property, plant-and equipment 193 102
Social expenses ; 164 253
Provision for impairment of other non-current assets 76 -
Lass on disposal of other non-currearit assets 22 27
Other expense 134 16
Total other operating expenses 1,627 754
14, Finance Income and Costs
In thousands of US Dollars Note 2017 2016
Firiance income
Interest income on restricted cash 133 93
Foreign exchange gain: 122 1,680
Other income 74 48
Total finance income 320 1,821
Finance costs
Interest expense on loans and bor_rc_)wings _ 1,627 2,609
Unwinding of discount on site restoration provision 26 574 414
Foreign exchange foss 37 249
Unwinding of discount'on historical costs 25 49 69
Other costs 25 12
Total finance costs 2,646 3,353
15. Income Tax Expense
(a) Corponents of income tax expense
Income tax expense recorded in profit-or foss for the year comprises the following:
In thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Current income tax. 169 13,324
Deferred income tax {1,181} 488
Total income tax (benefit//expense {1,012) 3,812
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15. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between the tax expense and profit or loss multiplied by applicable tax rate.

The current income tax rate applicable to the Company’s income in 2017 and 2016 is 20%.: A reconciliation between

the expected and the actual taxation ¢harge is-provided below:

In thousands-of US Dollars 2017 2016
{Loss)iprofit hefore tax {6,302) 15,838
Theoretical income tax (benefit)charge at statutory tax rate of 20% o _
(2016: 20%): (1,261) 3,168
Tax accrual for previcus periods {1,579) 392
Unrecognised deferred tax asset for the period 1,168 -
Other expenses 659 252
Total income tax (beriefitiexpense (1,012) 3,812

{c) Deferred taxes analysed by type of temporary difference

Differences between IFRS and statutory taxation regulations in the Republic of Kazakhstan give. rise to temporary
differences between the carfying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases,
The tax effect of the movements in these temporary differences is detaifed below at 20% (2016: 20%).

Credited/ Currency
4 January (charged) to’ translation 31 December

In thousands of US Doflars 2017 profit or loss differences 2017
Tax effect of deductiblef{taxable) temporary

differences _ _
Propetty, plant and equipment and intangible _ 3 N

assets {2,604) 1,972 {46) (678)
Mine development-assets {1,023) 591 (14) (446)
Site restoratian provision 777 309 (4} 1,082
Taxes payable 653 (98) 4 559
Tax losses carried forward 521 (311) 8 218
Liability for historical costs 205 (134) 4 165
Provision for inventory impairment: 73 53 (1) 126
Cther accruals 152 (32) 2 122
Minus: Unrecognised deferred tax asset - {1,169) 22 (1.147)
Recoghised deferred tax liability {1:156) 1,181 (25) -

The tax ef_fect of the. movementis.in .1}_19 temporary differences forthe year ended 3 1 Becember 2016 is:

Credited/ Currency
1January ({charged) to translation 31 December

in thousands of US Dollars 2016 profit or loss differences 2016
Tax effect of deductible/(taxahle) temporary

differerices _
Property, plant and equipment and intangible _

assets (2,578) 17 (46) (2,604)
Mine developrnent assets {1,120) 113 {16) {(1,023)
Tax losses carried forward 1,146 (629) 4 521
Site restoration provision 806 (42) 13 777
Taxes payable 514 126. 13 653
Liability for histarical ¢osts 421 (1 30) 4 295
Provision for inventory impaiimerit . 2 73
Other-accruals 166 (14) - 152
Recognised deferred tax Ilability (642) (488) {26) {1;156)
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in.carrying value of property, plant and equipment are presented below:

Buildings
and Machinery Construc-
construec- and tion in
In thousands of US Dollars Land tions equipment:-  Vehicles Other  progress. Total
Cost.
At 1 January 2016 1 29,347 16,277 2,234 606 957 49,422
Additions - 6 649 212 75 2,124 3,068
Transfers - - 2 - (2} oo -
Reclassification ta mine ' o _
develocpment assels - - - = - (1,018} (1,018)
Disposals - {549) (140) (24) 27y (740)
Effect of franslation to _ _
presentation clirency = 544 305 42 13 47 851
At 31 December 2016 1 20,807 16,684 2,348 668 2,083 51,681
Additions. - - 771 221 275 838 2,105
Transfers - - - 160 (160) - -
Transfer to.mine
development assets - (2,757) (2,308) - - {1,3186) (8,379)
Disposals - - (456} {222) {14) (22) (714)
Effect of translation to _ B
presentation currency - 139 87 & - 16 246
At 31 December 2017 1 27,279 14,780 2,511 769 1,599 46,939
Accumulated
depreciation
At-1 January 2016 - {5,980)  (7,107) (1,485) (488) - (15,060).
Depreciation charge - (1.324) (1,266) - (211) (55) - (2,926)
Disposais - - 469 .98 23 - 587
Effect of transtationio _
presentation currency - (148) (153} {30) (10} - {34%)
At 31 December 2016 " {7,522) (8,057) (1,631) {530) - (17,740)
Depreciation charge - {1,820) (1,315) (218) (58) - (3,411)
Disposals - 274 212 13 - 499
Impairment fosses . (4,695) (1,593} (219) {50) {291) {6,848)
Transfers - - - (6) 6 - .
Transfer to mine '
development assets - 562 612 - - - 1,174
Effect of translation to- )
presentation currency - 91 15 () = 4. (108)
Af 31 December 2017 - (13,384) (10,064) (1,863} (619) {287) (26,217}
Net carrying amount _ .
at 31 December 2016 1 22,375 8,627 717 138 2,083 33,941
Net carrying amount
at 31 December 2017 1 13,895 4,716 648 150 1,312 ‘20,722

Depreciation expenses in the amount of US'DOI_Iar_s 3,362 thousand (2016: US Dollars 2,912 thousand) were Charg_ed
to cost.of sales and US Dollars 19 thousand (2016: US Dollars 13 thousand)to general and administrative expenses.
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16. Property, Plant-and Equipment (Continued)

Construction-in-progress includes. construction of the yellow cake production building, motor bridge on techinclogicat
motor road, backup. process chart, assets of digital mine at Irkol and Semizbay field (technical upgrade).

In 2017 the Company's management made a decision to transfer part of the assets of the. Semizbay deposn in the
amount of US Dollars 4,876'thousand and part of the assets of the Irkal field in the amount of US dollars 90 thousand
from property, plant and equipment to the mine development assets (Note 17). The transfer was due to the resuits of
the tax audit for 2010-2013 (Note 31). The classification of these assets is the management's judgment, accardmgly,
in-order to bring the financial accounting and tax accounting in compliance, the management has found it acceptable

‘to transfer these assets from property, plarit and equipment to the: mine development assets. AS a result, depreciation

of these assets was recalculated based on the units of production method, and the difference was recoghised as part
of cost of sales in 2017 in'the amount of US Dollars 3,073 thousand.

17. Mine Development Assets

Field Site restoration lon-exchange
_In thousands of US Dolfars preparation asset resin Total
Cost
At 1 Janiary 2016 56,278 4,772 3,141 64,191
Additions 7,625 (234) 334 7,725
Effect of translation to presentation _ '
currency 1,246 82 67 1,395
At 31 December 2016 65,149 4,620 3542 73,311
Additions ' 3,062 7,384 124 5,470
Transfers from PPE (Note 16) 6,379 - -, 6,379
Effect of translation to presentation _ o _
currency (8) (13) 7 (14)
At 21 December 2017 75,482 5_,991 3,673 85,146
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2016 (40,287) {509) {726) (41,522)
Amartisation charge: (8,080) (243) £118) (8,439)
Effact of translation o preseniation N _ o
currency {962) (18) (16) {994)
At 31 December:2016 (49,329) {768) (858) (50,955)
Amortisation charge. (8,946) (327} {137) (2,410)
Impairment losses o (2,840) {804). {440) {3,884)
Transfers from PPE (Note 18) (1.174) - - (1,174)
Effect of translation o presentation
currency 100 20 9 129
At 31 December 2017 (61,980) (1,879) {1,426) (65,294)
‘Net carrying amount:
‘Al 31 December 2016 15,820 3,852 2,684 22,356
At 31 December 2017 13,493 4,112 2,247 19,852

The site restoration asset represents capltallsed cosis related to the Company's site.restoration provision. The carrylng
amount of provision and related asset is.re-evaluated each reporting period.
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18. Mineral Rights

o Historical _

In thousands of 13 Doliars costs QOther Total
Cost
At 1 January 2016 1,876 88 1,964
Additions . - -
Effect of franslation to presentation currency 35 2 37
At 31 December 2016 1,911 80 2,001
Additions _ - - -
Effect-of translation fo presentation currency 5 1 &
At 31 December 2017 1,916 9t 2,007
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2016 (546) (22) (568)
Amortisation charge {B9} {4) (93)
Effect of translation to presentation currency {14} - (14}
At 31 December 2016 (649) (26) (B875)
Amortisation charge (128) {5} {133}
Effect of transtation to presentation currency 1 - 1
At 31 December 2017 (776) (31) {807)
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2016 1,262 64 1,326
At.31 December 2017 1,140 60 1,200
19. Trade and Other Receivables

_In thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Current _ _ L
Trade receivables from relaied parties. 18,770 16,962
Trade réceivables from third parties 2 88
Total current trade receivables 18,772 17,050
Non-current’
Loans given to employess 279 448
Total financial assets within non-current trade and other

receivables 279 448

Advances. given for non-current assets 295 199°
Total non-current trade and other receivables: 574 645
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continuéd)

As of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016:trade and cther receivables are denominated in the following

currencies:
in thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Current
US Dollars 11,308 - 183
Tenge 7,466 16,867
Total 18,772 17,050
Non-current
Tenge 279 446
Total 279 446
20. Inventories
n thousands of US Dollats 2017 2016
Finished:goods and. goods for resale 6,032 6,681
Work in process 5,579 -4,047
Raw materials 299 275
Spare parts 240 335
Fuel 219 120
Other materials 2,176 1,926
Less provision for inventory impairment (626) (366)
Total inventories 13,919 13,018
Movemerits in provision for inventory impairment are presented below:
In thousarids of US Dolfars 2017 2016
Balance at 1 January 366 -
Provision for impairment for the year 424 356
Use of provision overthe vear (160) -
Effect of translation to presentation currency (1) 10
Balance:at 31 Decemnber 626 366
21, Advances Given and Other Assets
In thousands of US Dolfars 2017 2016
Loans given to employees 106 137
Total financial assets within advances given and other assets 106 137
Advances giveh for goods and services- 561 817
Prepaid expenses ‘31 74
Receivable from employees 9 10
Less provision for doubiful debts- (90} (4)
Total advances given and oftier assets: 617 1,034
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: 22. Cash and Cash Equivalents

f Jn'thousands of US Doliars 2017 2016

{ Cash on current bank accounts 533 1,072
Cash'on card ‘accounts 1 2
Cash on hand - 2
Total cash and cash equivalents- 534 1,076
As al.31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, cash was denominated in the following currencies:
Il thougands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Tenge 63 26
US Dollar 471 1,050
Total cash-and cash equivalents 534 1,076

summarised below:

Ttie credit quality of cash and cash equivalents can be assessed refering to exiemal credit ratings (if-any) and is

In thousands of US Dollars. Rating agency Rating 2047 2016
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank CenterCredit JSC S&P B 508 1,085
Citibank Kazakhstan JSC- 5&P A2 22 1
Halyk Bank JSC S&P B 3 -
Kazkommertsbank JSC 8&pP C 1 2
Nurbank JSC S&P B- - ]
Total 534 1,074
g 23, Charter Capital
Ownership _ _
{. In thousands of US Dollars interest 2017 2016
NAC KAP _ _ 51% 47,543 47,543
BeijingSincKaz - Uranium Resources investment’ 3 - o
[' Company Limited 49% 23,994 23,994
Total ¢harter capital 100% 71,537 71,537
[ 24. Loans-and Borrowings
In thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Unsecured bank borrowings 28,578 36,656
Total loans and borrowings 28,578 36,656
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24, Loans and Borrowings (Continued)

The information about Company’s borrowings is presented below;

Maturity date . N

In thousands of US Dollars Currency {year) 2017 2016
Bank CenterCredit JSC UsD 2018 28,578 36,656
Total loans an_d borrowings 28.578 36,656
The maturity analysis of loans and borrowings of the Company at amortised cost is as foliows:

In thousands of LIS Dollars 2017 2016
Loans and borrowings with maturity

Less than 1 year 28,578 36,656
Total Ioans and borrowings 28,578 36,656
The analysis of the.carrying and fair vaiue of these Ioansis as follows:

.31 Decemnber 2017 31 December 2016
Carrying value Fair value of  Carrying value Fair value of

in thousands of US Dollars. ofthe assets collateral of the assets collateral
Bank CenterCredit JSC '28,578. 28,578 36,656 36,656
Total loans and borrowings 28,578 28,578 36,656 36,656

Net debt reconciliafion

The table below sets out an analysis of net debt anid the-movements in the Group's liabilities from finaricing activities
for each of the periods presented. The ifems of these liabifities are those that are reportéd as financing in the statement

of cash flows:

Bank

_ CenterCredit _ CGNM Uk
in thousands-of US Dollars JSC. NAC KAP Limited Total
Net debt at 1. January 2016 28,916 7,134 - 37,050
Proceeds from lpans and borfowings 104,875 _ - - 104,975
Repayments of loans and borrowings {97,761) {7,077) - (104,838)
Payment of remuneration {1,865) (340) - {2,205)
Accrual of remuneration 1,926 351 23 2,300
Foreign exchange adjustments {1,224) - - {1,224)
Other non-cash movements C(27) (11) (23) - (61)
Effect of translation ta presentation _
curency 716 (57) -. 659.
Net debt at 31 December 2016 36,656 - - -36,656
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 82,702 - - 82,702
Repayments of [6ans and borrowings (90,952) - - (90,952)
Payment of remuneration ' (1,695} - - (1,695)
Accrual of remuneration 1,827 < - (1,627)
Foreign exchange adjustments (10} - - (10)
Other movements (15) - - (15)
Effect of translation to preseniation ' B
currency 265 - - 265
Net debt at 31 December 2017 28,578 - -

28,578
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25. Liability for Historical Costs

in thousands of US Doflars ‘Note- 2017 2016
At1 January 1,473 2,103
Unwinding of discount 14 49 69
Repayment {718)- (695)
Foreign exchange differénce’ {1) (28)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 17

At 31 December 823 1,473
Non-current liability 141 774
Current liability 682 699

In accordance with the terms. of the subsoil use contracts the Company is requiréd to reimburse the historical costs
incurred by the government. Expected cash flows were discounted- using interest rate of 3.3%. Historical costs are

repaid by equal instalments within 10 years from the commencement of commercial extraction.

26. Site Restoration Provision and Other Provisions

Sife restoration provision

In' théusands of US Dollars, Note 2017 2016
At 1 January 6,182 5,898
Change-in estimate 1,384 (234}
Unwmdlng of dis¢count 14 674 414
Effect of translation to preseritation currency {20) 114
Total site restoration provision 8,130 6,182

The valuation of obligation fo retire and restore assets as of 31 December 2017 was carried out by an independent
international consulting company. As at 31 December 2017 the undiscounted estimated cost of reclamation activities

is US Dollars 12,672 thousand (2016: US Dollars 8,009 thousand). The amount of site restoration provision was
calculated using current. prices {the prices effective at the reporting date) for expendifures to be incurred and then
inflated using the forecast inflation rate effective for the period until the settlement of obligations {5.4% for201 7—2030}

The present value at 31 December 2017 has been estimated using a discount rate of 9.06% p.a. (2016 7.08% p.al),
whichi is a risk free nominal rate as the future cash outflows reflect risk specific to the liability. In view of the Iong-te:m
nature of reclamation liabilities, there is uncertainty concernlng the actual amount of expenses. The increase in the
amaunt of the: Kability in 2017 is mainly due to the uss of prices used in the international market, the cost of eliminating

a well site, the. dismantling -of technological facilities and waste management. A significant part of environmental

expenditures wilt be spent in 2030,

When determining the amount of the provision, the management of the Company used assumptions and estimates’
baséd on the experierice of decommlssmnmg and carrying out similar-type clearing operations. Estimated assumptlons
and estimates were provided by the Companys engineers, as well as professional consultants based on the best

interpretation of the: current environmental legislation,

As at 31 December 2017 the balance of the site restoration .deposit was US Dollars 2,734 thousand (2016:
US Dollars 2,316 thousand) with the intérest rate of 7% p.a. Cash is denommated inTenge.

The credit quality of restricted cash can be assessed with the reference. on extemal credit rating (if any) and is
summarised below:

in thousands of US Dollars Rating agency Rating 31 Decernber 2017 31 December 2016
Restricted cash _

Qazaq Banki JSC S&P CCC+ 2,734 -
Nurbank JSC S&F B- - 2,318
Total restricted cash 2,734 2,316
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26. Site Restoration Provision and Other Provisions (Continued)

The management of the Company believes that restricted funds- placed in.JSC "Qazaq Banki” will be fully reimbursed
at the expiry of the deposit term..

Other provisions
Ih thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Pravisian for unused vacations. cie Ll 559
Total other provisions 391 559

27. Employee Benefits

Employee benefits obligation is. recorded in these financial statements based on the terms and provisions sef forth in
the collective labour agreement dated 23 December 2016.

2017 2016
) Non- Non-
in thousarids of US Dolfars Current current Total Current: current: Total
Post-employment benefis 8 100 106 - 163 183
Other non-current employee N _
benefits 8 80 88 [6)] 122 121
Total employee benefits 14 180 194 1) 285 284

Movements in employee benefits obligation are as follows:

‘Post-employment Other non-current

in thousands of US Dollars benefits employee benefits Total
Present value of employee’ benefits obligation

at 31 December 2016 163 121 284
Currént service cost 16. 11 27
Unwinding-of discount 16 11 27
Payments made. {7 (18} (25)
Remeasurements o (84) (38) {122).
Effect of translation to presentation currency 1 2

Present value of employee benefits obligation
at 31 December 2017 105 89 194
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27. Employee Benefits (Continued)

Amounts recorded in the statement of financial position.and in the statement of profit or ioss.and other comprehensive

income are presented below:.

I thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Present value of liability at vear end 194 284.
Net amount of liability 194 284
Unwinding of discount 27 10
Current service cost 27 41
Remeasurements of employee beénefits obligation :_(38) 78
Total recorded withih profit or loss for the year 16 129
Remeasurements of post-employment benefits- (84) (23)
Total recorded within other comprehensive income {84} (23)

The.remeasurement of obligation and current service cost charged to profit ar loss and other comprehansive income

are as follows:

in thousands of US. Dollars 2017 2016
Genéral and-administrative expenses 56 30
Finance costs 27 10
Cost of sales- {87) -89
Recognlsed within other comprehensive income. (84) (23)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 3 7
Totat remeasurement and current service cost {65) 113
In thousandsof US Dolars 2017 2016
Cumulative amount of employee benefits obligation remeasurement _ )

recognlsed in the statement of profit or loss 227 211
Cumulative amount of employee benefits obligation rémeasurement

recognisad within other comprehensive income 47 131
Key actugrial assumptions at the end of reporting period included the following:
in pertentags poinis 2017 2016
DBiscount rate 8.87% 10.08%.
Future salary increase 8.0% T.0%.
Average tumover-— administrative. staff 20.0% 8:77%
Average tumover — production staff 11.86% 4.31%

The mortality rates- used to project employee benefits at 31 December 2017 are based on ofﬁmal data of the

Kazakhstani actuarial cenire,

The discounting rate used in calculating employee benefits at 31 December 2017 is based on ‘the interest rate on

securities issued by the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan.
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27. Employee Benéfits (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis for the er_nployee-beneﬁ_ts obligation for changes in key assumptions is presented below:

I

In thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Discountrate
increase by 20% 178 261
Decrease by 20% 212 311
Future salary increase
increase by 20% 208 308
Decrease by 20%: 179 263
Average sfaff furnover
increasé by 20% 170 249
Decrease by 20% 222 326
28. Other Liabilities
_In thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Current Habilities . .
Other liabilities 63 58
Total current liabilities 63 58
29. Trade and Other Payables
" in thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Non-current
Trade payables to third parties 224 193
Total non-current trade and other payables 224 193
Current _ _
Trade payables to related. parties 2,403 3,180
Trade payables to third parties 931 811
Tota financial liabilities within current trade and other payables 3,334 3,991
Satary payables 185 379
Other trade payables 214 186
Total current trade and other payables 3,733 4,556
Carrying valug of financial liablities of the Company is denominated in the following currencies:
in thousands of US Dollars 2017 2016
Tenge 3,558 4,184
Total financial liabilities within trade and other payables 3,558 4,184
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30. Other Taxes and Obligatory Payments

_In thousands of UUS Dollars 2017 2016
Minerai extraction tax 2,492 2,848
Other taxes 419 513
Total other taxes and obligatory payments 2,911 3,362

31. Contingencies and Commitments

Legal proceedings

From time to timé and in the normial course of business, claims.against the Company may be received. On the basis
of its'own estimates, management is of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect of claims in éxcéss -
of provisions that have been made in these financial statements.

Tax legisfation

‘The ‘tax envirohment in the Republic of Kazakhstan .is subject to change and inconsistent application and

interpretations. Pamcularly, the current subsurface confracts do not have tax stability from 1 January 2009, and tax:
liabilities are assessed in accordance with the standard procedure, which may result in adverse changes in.tax positions
of the subsurface users, including position of the Company. Non-compliance with Kazakhstani law and regutations as
interpreted by the Kazakhstani authorities. may lead to the assessment of additional taxes, penalfies and irterest,

Kazakhstani tax legislation and practice is in"a state of continuous development, and therefore is subject to varying
interpretations and frequent changes. which may be retroactive. In cértain situations, to determine a tax base, the.tax
legislation refers to IFRS provisions. In such cases, interpretation of IFRS provisions by the Kazakhstani tax authorities
may differ from accounting poficies, judgments and estimates used by management for preparation of these financial
statements, and this may result in additional tax liabiilties for the Company. Tax-periods. remain open 1o retroactive
review by the Kazakhstan tax authorities for five years.

The Company"s management believes that its interpretation of the refevant legislation is appropriate and the Company’s
tax position will be sustained. Management believes that the Company will not have-any significant losses in regard to
the current or potential tax claims in excess of provision that have been made in these financial statements,

(a} Transfer pricing legislation

Under law ©n transfer pricing international transactions are. subject to state contral. This law prescribes Kazakhstani
companies:to maintain and, if required, to provide.economic rationale ard method:; of the determination of prices-used
in international transactions, including existence of the documentation supporting ihe prices and differentials.
Additionally, differentials could not be applled to the international transactions with companies registered in off-shore
countries, In case of deviation of fransaction price from market price the tax autharities have the right to adjust taxable
items and to-impase additional taxes, fines and.interest penalties.

Regardless of the inherent risks that the tax authorities: may ‘question transfer pricing policy of the Company, the
management of the Company beligves that it will be able fo sustainits position.and pravide all necessary documentation
supperting the export prices calculation in case if transfer pricing policy of the Company will bechallenged by the tax
authotities. Therefore, no additional tak obligations were reccrded by the Company in thesé financial statements.

{b) Complex tax inspections

In accordance with order of Akmola Region tax department dated 4 May 2014, the Company was subject to complex
tax inspection covering tax liabilities for ali taxes and other mandatory payments for 2018-2013. Based on the results
of tax inspection (Act No. 153 of 16 February 2015), the Company was issued a notice of additional assessments for
total amount of US Doliars 19,820 thousand {including corporate income tax for US Dollars 7,154 thousand, mineral
extraction tax-for US Dollars 3,224 thousand, excess profit-tax for US Dollars 2,845 thousand, property tax for
US Dollars 1,972 thausand, other taxes for US Dollars 1 thousand), including penailties for US Dollars 4,624 thousand.

QOn-31 Decémber 2014 the management of the Company assessed that in respect of property tax.and mineral extraction:
tax the probability-of payment of the assessed amounts in future was high and recognised a provision for the-assessed
amount of taxes in the financial statements for 2014 for the fotal amount of US Dollars 4,118 thousand (including
property tax for US Dollars 1,801 thousand, minaral extractlon tax for US Dollars 488 thousand, as wellas fines and
penalties for the total amount of US Dollars 1,829 thousand.
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31. Ceontingencies and Commitments (Continued)

In 2015, the Company appealed this notice of the State Revenue Committee of the Ministry of Finance of the Rejublic
of Kazakhstan (the “SRC MF RK"} due to the amendments made 1o the Tax Code of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated
3 December 2015. Also in 2015, the Company repaid the whole amount of accrued property.tax and mineral extraction
tax- accerdlng to the actin the.amount of US:Dollars.2,542 thousanid (mcludlng LS Dollars 2,289 thousand using the’
provision accrued befare -and US Dollars 253 thousand -using the’ property tax prepayment}. except for fines ‘and.
penaities of US Dollars 426 thousand.

On 3 February 2016 the Company received a notification in response to its claim with revised amounts of addltlonally
assessed taxes. [n accordance with the noftification, the total amount of additionally assessed taxes is US Dollars 1,925
thousand (inciuding corporate-income tax for US Dollars. 349 thousand, mineral extraction tax for US Dollars 305
thousand, proparty tax for US Doilars 1,089 -thousand, excess profit tax for US Dallars 212 thousand), the total-amount
of penalties is US Dallars 574 thousand, expected amount of fines is 50% of atal assessed additionat tax that is
US Dollars 955 thousand (including corporate income tax for US Dollars 173 thousand, mineral extraction tax for’
US Dollars 151 thousand, property tax for US Dollars 526 thousand, excess profit-tax for US Dollars 105 thousandy.

In accordance with this notification, the Company recagnised additional provision. for additionally assessed corporate
income tax and excess profit tax in full in the amount of US Dollars 561 thousand and recorded 1h|s charge within
corporate income tax for 2015, as well as additional penalties-on these. additionally assessed taxes in the amount of
US Dollars 161 thousand. In 20186, the: Company recognised additional assessment of penaities within administrative
expenses of us Doilare 345 thoueand and fine of US Dollars: 193 theusand

The. Company appealed to the court against the nofification received. On 13 January 2017 the Company received the-
decision -of the Supreme Court to recognize the Comipany's right for retrospective application of the regulation of

Clause 1, Article 111-1 of the Tax Code of the Republic of Kazakhstan and necessity to submit additional tax returns.

Guided by this decision and provisions of the Tax Code, in April 2017 the Company fransfers-property, plant and
equipment to'the mine development assets.

The Company believes that their inferpretations of tax legislation are approprizte and tax position of the Cempany wilt

be sustained.

The Company’s management believes thai the Company will not.incur any significant (osses on current and potential
tax claims over provisions: formed in these financial statements,

(c) Deductions of interest expense on dividends

‘nterest-expense on dividends in the-amount of US: Dollars. 1,353 thousand and US Dollars 309 thousand respectively,

was deductéd for current income tax ¢alculation in 2015 and 201 6. 1h 2017 the Company did riot incur interest expense
on dividends. Despite the risk that tax authorities may challenge such:position the Company's management is confident
that these expenses are _de_du_ctlble in accordance with requirements of tax legislation.

Insurance

The Kazakhstani insurance industry is in development; and many forms of insurance protection common in other
countries are: ot yet available. The Company.doas not have full insurarice coverage- for its manufacturing plants,
including for damages caused by the stoppage of production or obligations incurred to third parties in cornection with
damages caused to-the property or the envirenment resulting from accidents or operations: Unless the Company has
adequate insurance ceverage, a risk exists that the loss or destrisction of certain-assets could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's operations and its. financial position.

Compliarice with covenants

-The-Gompany-i's subject-to certain covenants refated primarily to its loans arid bqrrowi'hgs. Nen-compliance. with such
covenants may result in negative consequences for the Campany. The Company was in compliance with covenants at

31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, included in borrowings agreements,

Compliance with the subsurface use contract requirements

The Company is obliged to comply with the subsurface use contract requirements. .Non-compliance with such
requirements may result in negative’ consequences for the Company, including termination of contracts.

The management believes, the Company complied with all requirements of the subsurface use contract as of
31 December 2017,

Capital commitments on purchase of property, plant and equipment

As of 31 December 2017 the Campany has contractual obligations. to purchase property,.plant and equipment for the
total amount of US Dollars 422 thousand (31 December 2016: US Dollars 398 thousand).
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31. Contingencies and Commitments (Continued)
Dispute with customer

In December 20115 in.accord_ance'-Wi_th the sales contract signed with CGNM UK Limited the Company made shipment
of uranium products in the totat voluime of 143.75 TU..Accarding to the contract terms; sale is recognised at the moment
of delivery, howsver, the parties signed the acceptance act at the date later than physical delivery. Uranium price
decreased between the delivery date and the date of the acceptance act. As a resuit, the Company recognised revenue
from uranium sales.at the lesser amount. The amount in dispute was Tenge 228,628 thousand (equivalent to.US Déllars
887 thousand). In the course of nagotiations in 20186, the' Company according to recommendations of the Supervisory
Board decided to-approve early delivery date and cancel dispute amount.claim. Due tolong disagreement precess, the
counterparty did not make payments, In accordance with contract terms, the Company is entitled to accrue fine of 0.5%
per each day of payment delay that amounted to Tenge 95,463 thousand {equivaient to-US Dollars 279 thousand).
in response fo claim, the CGNM UK Limited offered a-compensation in the amiount of Tenge 12,182 thousand
{equivalent to US Dollars 36 thousand), The dispute settlement agreement was considered by the Supervisory Board
and signed by both parties. In 2017 the amount of Tenge 11,907 thousand {equivalent o US Dollars 36 thousand)
was credited to the settlement account of the Company.

32. Financial Risk Management

The risk management function within the Company is carried out in respect of financial risks, operatlonal risks and legzl
risks. Financial risk comprises credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and’
other price risk). The risk: management pollcy of the. Company was developed for the purposes of identification and
analysis of risks the Company is exposed to, establishment of risk fimits and refated control mechanisms, and to monitor:
the risks and to.ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits. Risk management policies and systems are.
regularly analysed for the need of revision due to changes in market conditions and the Company operations.

The Company sets standards and training and management procedures {o create streamlined and effective system of
controls where all employess: understan_d their roles and responsibilities. The opera’uonal and legal risk management:
functions are intended to ensure proper functioning of internai policies and procedures, in order to minimise operational
and legal risks.

This note presents. information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above financial risks, the Company's
objectwes policies and processes for measunng and managing risk, -and the Companys policy for management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are: included throughout these financial statements.

The Supervisory. Board'has overall responsibility for the establishment of the Company's goais and approval of risk
management policy. Management Board is responsible forimplementation of risk management policy and organisation
of effective risk management system.

Credit risk

The Company takes on exposure to cradit sisk, which is the tisk that one party to a financial instrument .wiil cause'a
financial loss for the other party by faiiing to discharge an obligation. Exposure to credit risk arises as a result of the
Company’s sales of products on credit terms and other transactions with counterparties giving rise to-financial assets.
Financial assets, which potentially expose the Company to credit risk, consist mainly of trade @nd other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, loans given to employees and other financial assets.

The Company's maximum exposure to.credit risk is reflected in the carrying -amounts of financial assets. The maximum
exposure to ¢redit risk as of the reporting date was-as follows:

In-thousands of US Dollars Note 2017 2016
Trade receivables 19 18,772 17.050
Restricted cash 26 2,734 2;316
Cash and cash equivalents 22 534 583
Loans. gl\ren to employees (non- current and current} 19, 21 385 1,074

Other financial assets

Total financial assets 22,429 21,027
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32. Financial Risk Management {Continued)

The Company's exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables is influenced mainly by individual characteristics
of each customer. The Company is exposed to concentrations of credit risk. 100% af the Company’s sales of uranium'
products in 2017 (2016: 100% of sales of uranium products) is atiributable to sales transactions ‘with two main
customers. The Company determines counteragents with similar characteristics, when they are refated parties. As at
31 December 2017, the trade receivables from these. customers -amounted to US- Dollars 18,770 thousand {31
December 2016: US Dallars 16,961 thousand).

The Company does not require insurance collateral in respect of outstanding trade and other receivables.

The Cempany-does not have a poicy to apply intemal ratings and determine credit limits to counterparties. The analysis
of cash and cash equivatents and restricted cash by credit ratings are in Notes'22 and 26.

The Compariy applies a credit policy according o which the creditworthiness of each new counterparty is separately
analysed before the Company's standard conditions and terms. of payments and delivery are. applied. Average credit
period.is 30 days.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk i is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obllgahons associated with financial liabilities,
The Company is exposed to daily calls on its avaitable cash resources. Liquidity risk is managed by the treasury of the
Company. Management monitors monthly folling forecasts of the Company's cash flows.

The Company seeks io maintain a stablé funding base primarily consisting of borrowings and trade and other payables,
The Company's approach to managing liquidity is fo ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
te meet its liabilities-as they fall due; under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Company’s reputation..

Typically the Company énsures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected cperationaf expense. However,
the potential impact of financial obligations.that could ocour in the extreme circumstarices that-cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters is excluded.

Below is a summary of the Company's outstanding loans and temporarily available cash including cash on shor-term
deposits, which are the imporant instruments in managing the liquidity risk:

In thousanids of US Dolflars Note 2017 2016
Cash on bank.accounts 22 534 1,074
Total. 534 1,074

The table below shows liabilities at the féporting date by their remaining contractual maturity. The amourits disclosed
in the maturity table are thé contractual undiscounted .cash flows, including gress Jean commitments .and financial
guarantees. Such undiscounted cash flows differ from the amount included in the statement of financial position
‘because the statement of financial position amount is based on discounted cash flows.

When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed is determined- by reference-to the conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period. Foreign currency payiments are translated using the spot exchange rate at the end of
the reporiting period.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities at 31 December 2017:

On demand
Contrac-  andless. From 3

in thatisands of Carrying tual cash than From1to 3 months From1 Moréthan

US Dollars amount flows 1 month months  to ] year to 5 years 5 years
Loarns and borrowings 28,578 30,471 80 2,975 28,216 - -
Trade payables ' 3,558 3,558 1,920 507 907 224 -
Liability for historical .

costs 823 855 - 175 524 156 -

Total 32,959 34,884 2,000 2,857 29,647 380 -
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32. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The following ‘are the contractual maturities.of financial Jiabilities at 31 December 2016:

On demand
Contrac-  and less From 3 _ _
In thotisands of Carrying fual cash ~ than From11{o 3 maonths From1 More than
US Dolfars dmount flows 1 month months:  to1year to5 years 5 years
Loans and borrowings 36,656 37,188 5,203 11,227 20,708, - -
Trade payabiés. 4,184 4,184 458 3,116 417 193 -
Liahility for historical
costs 1,473 1,554 - 175 524. 855 -
Total 42,313 42,876 5,661 14,518 21,649 1,048 -
Market risk

The Company takes on exposure to market risks. Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will have a:
negative. |mpact on the Company’s income or the value of its financial instrument hoidings. Market risks arise from open
positions in {a) foreign currencies, (b} interest bearing ‘assets and liabilities and (¢} equity products, ali of which are’
exposed to general-and specific market movements. The objective-of market risk management is to monitarand conirol
market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while optimising the return on mvestmsnts Management sets limits on
the. value .of risk that may be accepted, which is regilarly menitored. However, the use of this approach does hot
prevent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant market movements.

Sensitivities to market risks included below are based on a change in‘a factor while holding all other factors constant. .
In practice this is unlikely to-occéur and changes in some of the factors may be correlated — for example, changes in
interest rate and changes in fareign currency rates.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings deneminated in currencies othier than’
the functional currency.,

The Company is mainly expesed to the risk of US Daltar currency fluctuations. The Company's exposure to currency
risk was as follows:

In thousands-of US Dollars Note 2017 2016

Denominated in US Dollars

Trade and other receivables 19 11,3086 183
Cash.and cash equivalenis 22 479 1,050
Total financial assets 1,777 1,233
Loaris and bofrowings 24 (28,578) (36,656)
Total financial fiabilities (28,578) (36,656)
Net exposure to curréncy risk {16,801) {35,423)

The following exchange rates were applied during the year:

2017 2016
Spot rate at Spot rate
Aveérage reporting Average atreporting
in Tengs rate date réfe date
US Dallar 326.00 332.33 342.16 333.29
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A 30% weakening and 10% strengthiening of Tenge against US Dollar as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 30% and 10%)
would decrease/(increase) equny and profit or loss for the period by the amounts. shown below.

In thouisarids.of US. Dolfars 2017 2016
US Dollar strengthening by +30% / +30% 5,040 10,627
US Dollar weakening by <10%/ - 10% {1,680) (3.,542)

Uranium products price risk

The Company is exposed to the effect of fluctuations in the- price of uranium, which is quoted in US Dollars on the
intemational markets. The:Company prépares ar.annual budget based on future uranium prices:

Uranium prices historically fluctuate and are affected by numerous factors outside of the Company's contrel, including,
but not fimited to; demand for uranitim used as fuel by nuclear power stations, depletion of secoridary sources such as
recyc!mg and blended down. highly enriched stocks avaiiable to close the gap of the excess demand over supply,
regulations by International Atomic Energy Agency and other factors related specifically to uranium industry.

Atthe end of the reparting period there was no significant impact of commodity price risk on the Company's financiat
assetfs and liabilites.

Interest rafe risk

Changes in interest rates impact loans and borrowings by changing either their fair value (fixed rate debt} or their future.
cash flows {floating rate debt). At the time of acquisition of new loans and borrowings - management uses its judgment
to decide whetheér it believes that a fixed or a floating rate ‘would be more favourable to the Company over the expected
‘period until maturity.

Asat31 December 2017 all (2018: ali) of the Company's borowings had fixed interest rates..

Atthe reportlng date the interest rate profile of the Company's financial instruments grouped by interest rate was as
follows;

In thousands of US Doflars Note 2017 2016

Fixed rate instruiments

Financial assets 26 2,734 2,316
Financial liabilities 24 (28,578) (36,656)
Net position (25,844) (34,340)

Falr value ih comparison to carrying value

Carrying value of financial assets and liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximates thelrfalr value due
to their shori-term nature.

Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to safeguard the Coinpany's ability to continug as.a
going.concem, 10 maintain investor, creditor and market confidence, to provide returns for shareholder, {o maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, and to sustain future development of the business. Capital
includes all capital and retained eamings of the Company The Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid ta’
owners. as well as to sell assets to reduce debt in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure. Currently, the
Company has no formal criteria @nd precedures for managing capital.

39



“Semizbay-U” LLP
Notes lo the Financial Statemenis - 31 December 2017

33. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The estimated fair value of fixed interest rate- instruments is based on estimated future cash flows expected to be
received discotinted at current interest rates for new instrumients: with similar credit risks and remaining maturities,.
Discount rates used depend on'the credit risk of the counterparty The carrying value of the.Caompany’s financial asséts
carried at amortised cost approximates their fair value,

Liabiiities carrded-al amortised cost

Fair values of other liabilities were determined using valuation technigues. The estimated fair value: of fixed interest
rate. instruments with stated maturities were estimated based on expected cash flows discounted at current interest
rates for new instruments with similar cradit risks and. remaining maturities. The fair value of liabilities repayable on
demand or after a- notice period (“liabilities payable on demand") is estimated. as the amount payable on demand,
discounted from the first date on which the-amount could be required ta be paid. The carrying value of the Company's
financial fiabilities approximates fhsir fair value.

34, Financial Instruments by Measurement Category

For the purposes of assessment, according to 1AS 39 ~ Financial instrument: Recognitiorn and Measurement the
Conipany classifies financial -assets into.the following categories: a) loans and receivables, b) available-for-sate.
financial assets, and c) financial assets held to maturity. The Company classifies financiat kabilities into the. following
categories: a) liabilities carried at amortised cost, and b) liabilities: carried at fair value.

The following table provides a reconciliation of:financial assets and financial fiabilities with these measurement
categories:.

In thousands of US Doffars Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Financial assets

Loans arid receivables

Trade and other receivables 19, 21 19,157 17,633
Restricted cash 26 2,734 2,316
Cash and cash equivalents 22 ' 534 1,076
Qther financial assets 4 4
Total financial assets. 22,429 21,029

Financlal liabilities

Liabilities at amoriised cost

Loans and borrowings 24. 28,578 36,656
Trade payables 29 3,558 4,184
Liability for historical costs 25 823 1,473
Total finzncial liabilities 32,959 42,313

35. Events after Reporting Period’

tn January-February 2018 the Company received several short-term borrowings denoniinated in US Dollars from
Bank CenterCredit JSC for the total amouiit of US Dollars 11,000 theusand for a period of six moriths.
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